AUSTIN

Independent School District

Community Bond Oversight Committee

September 9, 2025 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.

The Community Bond Oversight Committee met September 9, 2025 at Odom Elementary School, 1010 Turtle Creek Blvd. Austin,
TX 78745 to consider, discuss and take action on the items of the agenda below. These meeting minutes are supplemented by
meeting materials. More information can be found at the 2017 Bond Book & 2002 Bond Program Website.

Members in Attendance: Amber Welsh, Amy Moore, Ann Phipps, Anna Valdez, April Clark, Barbara Spears-Corbett, Kay Gooch,
Jennifer Carson, Larry Huang, Lisa Flores, Mark Grayson, Monty Exter, Paula Ohlendorf Bookidis, Richard Kelly, Ryan Pollock

Staff & Consultants in Attendance: Adriana Cedillo, Bianca Medina-Leal, Bryant Obando, Catherine Martinez, Dinita Caldwell,
Hamza Salim, Jada Simpson, Jaime Miller, Katrina Montgomery, Laura Browder, Melissa Laursen, Michael Mann, Randall Sakai,
Ryan Marcum, Shashank Singh, Sonny Fletcher

Public Attendance:

AGENDA ITEM

NOTES

Call to Order

Mark Grayson called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.

Public Comment (2 mins per
comment, max 10 mins)

1.

Roxanne Evans, Chair of the East Austin Coalition for Quality Education, shared public comment
in strong support of several District 1 bond projects. She emphasized the importance of realizing
the community’s vision for Yellow Jacket Stadium, supported remediation work at the Delco
Center, and affirmed her backing for continued work at Eastside Early College High School. She
voiced opposition to any work stoppages at District 1 schools currently under construction or
slated for construction due to financial constraints.

Cheryl Bradley expressed agreement with all points raised by Ms. Evans, with particular
emphasis on the need to move forward with Yellow Jacket Stadium improvements. She
questioned why the track could not be built with eight lanes, raised concerns about safety
considerations cited for delaying the project, and asked why the field house is currently being
used for storage. She noted that the project was a voter-approved proposition and that failing
to complete the work would have repercussions within the community.

Noelita Lugo (parent of 3 Austin ISD students - elementary, middle and high school) submitted a
comment via email:
Good day CBOC co-chairs/members,

I am submitting this public comment in support of installation of video cameras to occur during
building construction (for new builds/modernization builds). This approach would be more cost
effective than retrofitting cameras after a facility has been built.

Nadia Khan submitted a comment via email:
Hi, my name is Nadia Khan. | was on the 2022 Bond steering committee, and currently serve on
the multilingual ed advisory committee. | have 2 requests.

| request that the district make all official district advisory committee meetings accessible to the
public in a virtual live format such as Zoom or Google meets. The community needs increased
options to facilitate engagement across all advisory bodies. The trend lately has been to reduce
virtual options, resulting in many parents unable to attend.

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://bond.austinschools.org/sites/bond.austinschools.org/files/inline-files/AISD-2017-Bond-Book_092717.pdf
https://bond.austinschools.org/
https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org

And secondly, | would like to request that all SPED cameras funded by the 2022 bond be
installed simultaneously across the district in eligible spaces to provide the same level of safety
for all kids across the district.

The 2022 Bond steering committee specifically voted to provide these cameras via the bond, in
one fell swoop, at a cost of $1.2Million, to remove the additional hurdles and burden currently
placed on parents of some of our most vulnerable students to request these cameras that are
available to them. That is why it was included, to make this safety feature automatic and more
easily accessible and attainable for this underserved group, so families don’t have to stick their
neck out, jump through hoops, or risk retaliation, and so the cameras would be equitably
available and distributed in eligible spaces.

The Facilites Dept calculated exactly how many eligible spaces there were (398) and how much
it costs per Camera installation ($3000), multiplied the 2 numbers, and came up with a specific
allocation for the bond. ($1.2 Mil.) We must follow through with the installation AS INTENDED
by the BSC, and as sold to the community in exchange for their votes. We did not see opposition
to this bond, in part because this item was included. We have to honor this promise.

While the district ultimately combined line items for simplicity of the presentations' sake into
one line of $15.2 Mil that says “special education inclusion improvements and cameras”, we
never changed the allocations. We were told, and sold to the voters, that if the bond passes,
this money ($1.2 Mil) would specifically be spent on THIS and ONLY this.

We added this item in the July 23rd, 2022 meeting. And it’s shown consequently in the revised
bond package posted for that meeting date. It indicates $1.2 Million for “Special education
classroom cameras.” As | said, this was estimated by facilities based on 398 eligible current
spaces x $3000 per classroom = $1.2 Mil.

You can listen to this discussion moment on the July 23rd, 2022 BSC video at the 1:38 hour mark
when we ask for the cost, and the 3:14-3:25 hour mark where we put it in the package.

| also understand this may legally require a blanket request from the trustees for all cameras as
an administrative procedure. If this is required, has the CBOC requested this directive so that
the bond funds can be released as intended by the BSC and the voters? The money is worth less
each year we don’t spend it. And it can only be spent on this.

In the meantime, have all new builds automatically installed these? Will our fewer
more-resourced schools be equipped starting next year? What is the status of the $1.2Million
allocated to this?

Lastly, is there awareness in the facilities department of the LRP intent to install and maintain
cameras in all eligible spaces, without forcing the burden of request to families? Can this be
added to the ed spec, so we don’t have to keep fighting the same fight?

Approval of Minutes: August
12,2025

Motion to approve August minutes as by April Clark, second by Jennifer Carson. Vote to approve passed

unanimously.

Communications

Melissa Laursen provided updates on bond communications, including recent improvements to the bond

website and how updates are shared across campuses.

April Clark asked about the lack of recent Campus Architectural Team (CAT) meetings at Travis Early
College High School. Melissa invited Shashank Singh (the Travis ECHS project manager) to provide

additional context. Shashank confirmed that although a CAT meeting had not been held since early

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org

summer, the team sent construction updates last week and plans to schedule a meeting in early October
following the topping-off milestone.

Melissa Laursen asked whether this information had already been shared directly with the campus.
Bianca Medina-Leal responded that it had not, but that follow-up communication would be sent.

N/A

N/A

Finance

Economic Opportunity Office
CMD 2022

M rnization mprehensi

ve Projects

e Prop B (Technology)
e Mendez MS Update
e Staff updates

Prop B Technology

Laura Browder provided an update on Proposition B (Technology), including the status of staff device
refresh, student technology inventory, security enhancements, and network infrastructure
improvements.

Larry Huang inquired whether repair or replacement of damaged or stolen student devices falls under
bond funding. Laura responded that while incidents do occur, it is more cost-effective for the district to
purchase devices with a four-year accidental damage warranty at the time of acquisition rather than
maintain separate insurance coverage.

Laura shared that her team is working to improve reporting accuracy around lost or damaged devices by
strengthening communication with campus-level student device managers. She noted that if damage is
accidental and falls under warranty, no fees or fines are incurred.

Larry Huang asked whether the district maintains enough inventory to replace damaged devices in a
timely manner. Laura explained that they follow a one-to-one swap model: if a device is damaged, field
technicians and the warranty team verify the issue and pull from available overage to fulfill the request.
The district provides elementary schools with devices for their enrollment plus a 5% buffer, and middle
schools with enrollment plus 8%, ensuring additional units are available when needed.

Lisa Flores asked whether device chargers are factored into the replacement process. Laura noted that
charger lifespans are generally shorter than those of the devices themselves, and while campuses aim to
keep extras on hand, this continues to be an area of need. Lisa emphasized that not all families can
afford to replace chargers on their own and asked that the district be mindful of accessibility. Laura
shared that in one school year, the district had to purchase over $500,000 worth of chargers and agreed
that both students and teachers have a role in proper care and tracking.

Richard Kelly shared that the student device distribution process has been working smoothly at Austin
High School, with students easily accessing laptops. He also noted that many families already have
compatible USB-C 45-watt chargers at home, which can help supplement district supplies.

Mendez MS Update

Michael Mann and Sonny Fletcher provided an update on the current status of improvements and
planning at Mendez Middle School. April Clark asked whether design and planning efforts are being
shaped by the presence of Third Future rather than the original bond intent, noting concern that this
could compromise the quality of services for Mendez students. Michael Mann responded that while
Third Future is currently operating at the site, the district is working with AISD leadership and Third
Future to determine what is appropriate moving forward. He emphasized that Third Future is not
dictating how bond funds are used.

April Clark asked when the Third Future contract ends, and Monty Exter followed by asking how long the
contract runs and whether Mendez is currently being coded as four separate campuses. Michael stated

he was unsure about the status or renewal of the contract. Ryan Marcum clarified that the district

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org

considers Mendez and ALC as two separate programs operating at the campus so it is coded as two
separate programs.

Larry Huang inquired about messaging to the Mendez parent community regarding timelines and
whether the ALC is a short- or long-term presence on campus. Melissa Laursen noted that
communication has so far been limited to the Campus Architectural Team (CAT), and that there has not
been a final decision on long-term plans.

Larry Huang expressed concern that the CAT is a small group and does not represent the full parent
community. Melissa Laursen acknowledged this and noted that while communication has occurred
through the CAT, which included representatives for outdoor learning discussions and other AISD
employees—there has not been broader outreach to families about how long the pause in construction
will last. She agreed this should be addressed.

Richard Kelly asked about current enrollment at Mendez. Ann Phipps reported enrollment at 203
students based on the district’s website.

April Clark asked whether planning has been paused for the fine arts program. Melissa Laursen
confirmed that planning had started but was paused while the district evaluates how long ALC will
remain on site. The team needs clearer guidance before returning to the design team.

Lisa Flores emphasized the need for intentional outreach to the ALC community, noting that the
transition to the Mendez campus occurred quickly and without ample time for family input. She
recommended that ALC families be given the same attention and inclusion as Mendez families. Melissa
agreed to coordinate this communication.

Amy Moore asked why fine arts planning had been paused, stating that this seems inconsistent with
district expectations for program equity. Melissa Laursen clarified that fine arts improvements were
included in the design (with input provided by the Austin ISD Executive Director of Fine Arts) , but due to
ALC and other entities relocated to the Mendez campus, it was not included in the first phase of
construction.

Mark Grayson raised concerns about the proposed shared mental health space, noting that families
might be alarmed by students from both programs using the space. Michael Mann responded that while
students wouldn’t use the room at the same time, duplicating the space could be wasteful if ALC is only
temporarily co-located. Ryan Marcum added that Third Future’s current mental health services are
provided virtually. Monty Exter asked whether the mental health space would be managed by external
providers. Michael Mann said he believes the district is contracting with licensed mental health
professionals (LMHPs).

Monty Exter also inquired about the makeup of the Mendez CAT and how many members are directly
employed by Third Future. Melissa Laursen shared that, to her knowledge, two members—likely a
principal and director—are affiliated with Third Future, though their participation has been inconsistent.
Monty noted that in his experience, principals often carry significant influence in CATs. He also raised the
issue of fine arts being a state requirement and questioned why it is not currently being implemented at
Mendez. Jennifer Carson closed the discussion by urging committee members to bring these questions
directly to AISD Board Members, as the contract and long-term decisions rest with them.

Staff Updates

Bianca Medina-Leal presented updates on O. Henry Middle School and introduced Bryan Hakim, project
manager for AECOM. The project includes both new and renovated areas, with a focus on ensuring it
remains on budget.

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org

April Clark asked whether there had been flooding at the campus. Michael Mann confirmed that flooding
issues had occurred in the courtyard and swing area, and they are working to address all flooding
concerns.

Lisa Flores noted that the Bond Book references Special Education inclusion spaces and asked for
clarification. Michael Mann explained that these spaces are less prescriptive than ADA requirements and
are still being defined in collaboration with the District. Bianca Medina-Leal confirmed that the project
includes a vocational lab, a motor sensory space, and a flexible studio.

Lisa Flores asked whether Special Education spaces are interchangeable over time or locked into specific
uses. Melissa Laursen responded that the life skills rooms and other spaces are designed to be flexible
and adaptable depending on future programming needs.

Lisa Flores also inquired whether these spaces would be equipped with cameras or require retrofitting
later. Michael Mann shared that at this time, pre-installing cameras is not a district requirement.

Bianca Medina-Leal provided an update on the Andrews Elementary School project. April Clark noted
that the project was marked as not on budget and asked for clarification. Bianca Medina-Leal explained
that Andrews is a full modernization project, which includes complete demolition and reconstruction. To
meet all specifications—such as space sizes, quantities, and functionality—the project requires
additional funding beyond the original allocation. As a result, full modernizations across the bond
program are generally shown as "not on budget."

April Clark asked for the original and current budget figures. Michael Mann responded that the project
originally had a budget of approximately $38 million and is currently projected at around $50 million.

Michael Mann provided an update on bond savings associated with the recent central office
reorganization. Paula Ohlendorf Bookidis asked whether 100% of the employee salaries were being
covered by bond funds. Michael Mann responded that, for the most part, they were.

Katrina Montgomery added that the reorganization was designed to reduce costs across the board.
Monty Exter inquired about the rationale for involving bond funds, noting that bond funding is typically
fixed and separate from operational cost savings. Katrina Montgomery explained that due to rising
project costs, the district is actively seeking ways to save within the 2022 Bond Program, and the
reorganization contributes to that effort.

Sonny Fletcher then presented an update on Delco. An engineering review found that some structural
piers were too short. April Clark asked if the team could share specific recommendations. Richard Kelly
expressed interest in hearing how the issue would be addressed. Sonny Fletcher noted that there is still
some discrepancy between the three different engineering groups who have evaluated the site. The
team is still working through options and does not yet have a definitive solution but is working to find a
solution as quickly as possible.

Monty Exter asked if the number of impacted piers could be quantified. Sonny Fletcher explained that
number is still unknown. He added that if the short piers are located near the center of the building, it
could have a greater structural impact.

Larry Huang inquired about the timeline for when the facility would be considered fully resolved. Sonny
Fletcher clarified that while the building remains in use and is currently safe, the timeline for long-term
structural remediation is still unknown. Michael Mann added that for the next six months, the building
will continue to be used as usual while the design team works toward a permanent solution. He noted
that the original design engineer is expected to take responsibility for the error. Larry emphasized that

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org

even if the issue takes several years to fully resolve, the community needs clear communication and
expectations.

CMD 2022 Targeted Projects
e SPED Cameras

Michael Mann presented a slide outlining the timeline and next steps for a recommendation to the
Board of Trustees regarding Special Education (SPED) cameras. Lisa Flores noted that the AISD website
has been updated to reflect the current law but stated that the change to the law occurred several years
ago, and the website had not been compliant until recently. She reminded the committee that her
understanding was that the CBOC had unanimously voted to submit a recommendation to the Board and
expressed concern that no action was taken. A slide was presented showing that the previous co-chairs
expressed the view that SPED cameras were outside the purview of the Community Bond Oversight
Committee in Fall of 2024. This purview was not discussed or voted on by the full committee.

Lisa Flores also shared that 16 bond projects were published referencing SPED cameras as part of the
bond program. She cited life safety systems as clearly within Proposition A and emphasized that
retrofitting camera infrastructure post-construction introduces unnecessary cost. She offered to share
her research with the committee and recommended updating the PDM to ensure that every eligible
space is pre-wired for cameras.

April Clark supported the recommendation to include pre-wiring for all eligible spaces as a standard,
noting that retrofitting costs more in the long term. Jaime Miller responded that staff had been
instructed not to use bond money to pre-wire for SPED cameras and recalled that the guidance likely
came from the superintendent’s office. She also referenced the committee’s past restroom discussion,
noting that her understanding was that recommendations to the Board were the responsibility of the
committee, not staff.

Monty Exter addressed two process-related concerns. First, he emphasized that decisions made by the
co-chairs regarding voted upon items must be brought back to the full committee for review. Second, he
clarified that any recommendation letter to the Board should be submitted by staff. He stated that he
was never under the impression the letter would come from anyone on the committee, and that staff
would facilitate submitting the letter once the committee voted on it.

Jennifer Carson made a motion to create a subcommittee to draft a letter to the board regarding SPED
cameras, with the goal of presenting a final draft to the full committee for a vote at the October meeting.
Mark Grayson added that before the draft letter is presented to the Board, it must be formally aligned
with the committee’s charge. The motion was seconded by Richard Kelly and approved by the
committee. April Clark, Lisa Flores, and Richard Kelly volunteered to serve on the subcommittee.

CMD 2017 Bond Projects
e Eastside ECHS
Update

Michael Mann provided an update on Targeted Work projects funded by the 2017 Bond. He confirmed
that all 2017 bond work at Bowie High School is complete.

April Clark asked about accessibility at House Park for parents in wheelchairs. Michael responded that
the site includes both ground-level access and an elevator.

Bianca Medina-Leal and Shashank Singh presented an update on Eastside Early College High School.
Amber Welsh asked about the timeline for receiving the final Certificate of Occupancy. Michael stated
that the goal is to have it in place by the end of the calendar year.

April Clark requested that Yellow Jacket Stadium be added to the agenda for the next meeting. Barbara
Spears-Corbett confirmed that the co-chairs would discuss that request during their upcoming call and
noted that it aligns with other ongoing considerations at that school site.

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org

CBOC Committee Operations
e Consolidation
Impacts on Bond
Project

Jaime Miller led a discussion on school consolidations as they relate to the Committee's oversight role.
She emphasized that decisions about how bond funds are allocated rest with the Board of Trustees,
while the Community Bond Oversight Committee is responsible for oversight once those decisions are
made.

April Clark raised concerns about the Committee’s purview regarding bond projects at campuses that
may be closed. She questioned whether the district is beholden to voters if funds were allocated to a
school that is later closed. She noted that significant funds have already been spent on some campuses
that the District’s Data Rubric notes could still be halted, however she felt that this was dishonest to
what the voters approved.

Mark Grayson clarified that while the Committee serves as the community’s voice, it operates in an
oversight capacity and does not influence where bond money is allocated. Paula Ohlendorf Bookidis
added that this situation feels unprecedented and asked if a revised bond book would be developed to
reflect changes. April reiterated the importance of understanding to what degree the district is obligated
to follow through on voter-approved projects when schools are later closed.

Anna Valdez stated that the Committee should have a role in recommending that projects not be
stopped once construction is underway. Amber Welsh inquired about the timeline for reallocating bond
funds and asked who is developing the guiding principles for this process. Katrina Montgomery
responded that the Board will vote in November, with multiple public engagement meetings occurring
throughout the fall to gather community input and maintain a transparent process.

Jennifer Carson noted that while this situation is broader in scope, school consolidations have occurred
before. Paula asked what data trustees have on bond spending when making consolidation decisions.
Katrina replied that trustees do not currently have that data, as the district is trying to keep the process
pure and focused.

Members request clarification from bond lawyers regarding the legal considerations surrounding school
closures in cases where bond allocations have been made and funds have already been spent on the
associated campus project. They would like guidance on whether it is legally permissible to close a school
that has received funding from a voter-approved bond program, and whether the prior expenditure of
bond funds on that campus imposes any restrictions or obligations on the district.

Anna asked for bond counsel to attend the next CBOC meeting, and April requested that any legal
guidance also be shared with the Committee in writing.

Future Items for Discussion

e Bond lawyer attendance
o VYellow Jacket Stadium
e SPED Camera letter

Adjourn

Move to adjourn by Anna Valdez at 8:17 pm, second by Paula Ohlendorf Bookidis.

Public comments can be provided to the committee in writing via Austin ISD CBOCinternal@austinisd.org.
Limit 2 minutes per commenter. All comments, whether they are read or not, will be supplied to the committee in their entirety.



https://www.austinisd.org/advisory-bodies/cboc/contact
mailto:CBOCinternal@austinisd.org



